
CSD-5 HIGHLIGHTS
TUESDAY, 15 APRIL 1997

CSD delegates continued their first reading of the draft outcome
of UNGASS in Plenary. They also conducted dialogues with
indigenous peoples and NGOs.

PLENARY
IMPLEMENTATION IN AREAS REQUIRING URGENT

ACTION. Integration of Economic, Social and Environmental
Objectives: In paragraph 21 (population), the EU, CANADA,
NORWAY and the US added references to reproductive health care
and family planning. The US deleted the reference to international
assistance for implementation.

Sectors and Issues:In 32 (chemicals and wastes), the EU, the
REPUBLIC OF KOREA, the US and RUSSIA called for separate
sections on chemicals and wastes. CANADA added references to:
voluntary industry initiatives; current negotiations on safety of
radioactive waste management; and minerals and metals. JAPAN
suggested that storage, transport and disposal be consistent with
existing agreements as well as the Rio declaration. MEXICO
emphasized the proximity principle.

In 33 (land and sustainable agriculture), the G-77/CHINA called
for plans to provide developing countries with access to basic
agricultural requirements. The EU recommended action to ensure
secure land tenure for farmers. The US suggested minimizing
conversion of forests and natural areas for food production.
AUSTRALIA called for continued WTO work to liberalize
international trade and remove distortions to sustainable
development in agriculture. NORWAY called for measures to
improve food security for the urban poor. The SUSTAINABLE
AGRICULTURE CAUCUS emphasized capacity-building for
small-scale farmers to reinforce local food systems.

On 34 (desertification and drought), the G-77/CHINA replaced
“adequate” with “new and additional” financial resources and
recommended transferring technology without delay. The EU
recommended support for the Global Mechanism’s “work to
facilitate the mobilization of” adequate financial resources. The US
proposed increasing the effectiveness and efficiency of existing
financial mechanisms. BENIN underscored the need to eradicate
poverty in affected countries.

On 35 (biodiversity), the G-77/CHINA’s reformulation called
for action to,inter alia: equitably share benefits from
biotechnological development and genetic resource utilization;

facilitate technology transfer; and strengthen national
capacity-building. SWITZERLAND said governments should
elaborate national biodiversity action plans by 2002. The US
supported “appropriate” transfer of “relevant” technology and
proposed establishing protected areas systems.

In 36 (sustainable tourism), the G-77/CHINA introduced
language on: developing countries’, including SIDS, increasing
reliance on tourism; special attention to cultural and eco-tourism;
and enhancing policies and capacity for sustainable consumption
and production. SWITZERLAND said tourism is particularly
resource-intensive, policies should be strengthened locally, and the
CSD should cooperate with the ILO and other relevant
organizations when defining an international programme of work.

In 37-38(SIDS), the G-77/CHINA, supported by AOSIS, called
for adequate provision for the Barbados Programme of Action
review in 1999. The US inserted “where appropriate” after a
reference to external assistance.

In 39 (natural disasters), the G-77/CHINA called for assistance
to developing countries to strengthen mechanisms and policies,
improve access to technology and provide support for preparedness
and response.

Means of Implementation:The G-77/CHINA condensed three
ODA paragraphs into one, stressing that: private capital flows
cannot replace ODA; developed countries should honor their
commitment to the ODA target as soon as possible; new and
additional resources remain key for sustainable development; and
developed countries must display political will to reverse the
current downward trend. On41 (ODA target), CANADA said
developed countries should “seek” to reverse this trend. The EU
said efforts should be made to reverse the trend and donors and
recipients should address the factors causing the decline.
AUSTRALIA and the EU deleted text on returning to 1992 shares
of GNP within five years. On42 (role of ODA), the US said
financing for sustainable development will come primarily from
countries’ own public and private sectors. The EU called for
continued efforts to improve the quality and effectiveness of ODA.

In 44 (FDI), to ensure that FDI is geared toward sustainable
development, the G-77/CHINA called for incentives by donor
governments and NORWAY for national policies. The EU
recommended ensuring macroeconomic stability and open trade
and investment policies to stimulate FDI. In45 (GEF), the
G-77/CHINA called for: adequate resources without stringent
conditionalities; adequate, sustained and reliable funding for GEF
operation; and GEF funding for incremental costs. A US redraft
notes that evaluation of the GEF’s performance will help determine
the replenishment size. An EU reformulation adds reference to IDA

This issue of theEarth Negotiations Bulletin<enb@iisd.org> is written and edited by Chad Carpenter, LL.M. <chadc@iisd.org>, Peter Doran <PF.Doran@ulst.ac.uk>, Kira
Schmidt <kiras@iisd.org> and Lynn Wagner <lynn@iisd.org>. The Editor is Pamela Chasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org> and the Managing Editor is Langston James “Kimo”
Goree VI <kimo@iisd.org>. French translation by Mongi Gadhoum <mongi.gadhoum@enb.intl.tn>. The sustaining donors of theBulletinare the International Institute for
Sustainable Development <reception@iisdpost.iisd.ca> and the Netherlands Ministry for Development Cooperation. General support for theBulletinduring 1997 is provided
by the Overseas Development Administration (ODA) of the United Kingdom, the Ministry of Foreign Affairs of Denmark, the Ministry of Environment of Sweden and the
Swiss Federal Office of the Environment. Specific funding for coverage of this meeting has been provided by the Ministry of Foreign Affairs of Norway. Funding for the
French version has been provided by ACCT/IEPF with support from the French Ministry of Cooperation and the Department of Environment of Quebec. The ENB can be
contacted at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. IISD can be contacted at 161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor, Winnipeg, Manitoba R3B 0Y4, Canada; tel:
+1-204-958-7700; fax: +1-204-958-7710. The opinions expressed in theEarth Negotiations Bulletinare those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of IISD
and other funders. Excerpts from theEarth Negotiations Bulletinmay be used in other publications only with appropriate citation. Electronic versions of theBulletinare sent
to e-mail distribution lists (ASCII and PDF format) and can be found on the Linkages WWW-server at <http://www.iisd.ca/linkages/>. The satellite image was taken on
1997/04/16 0:08:29 UTC from 100000 km above The Hague (52° 3’ N 4° 10’ E), Copyright © 1997 The Living Earth, Inc. http://livingearth.com. For further information on
ways to access, support or contact theEarth Negotiations Bulletinsend e-mail to <enb@iisd.org>.

Earth Negotiations  Bulletin
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

A Reporting Service for Environment and Development Negotiations

Vol. 5 No. 75 Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development Wednesday, 16 April 1997



replenishment. NORWAY, CANADA and JAPAN deleted the
reference to a doubling of resources.

In 47 (debt), the G-77/CHINA called for a study of the
interrelationship between debt and sustainable development. The
EU called for debt relief, the US for debt rescheduling, and both
deleted cancellation. On49 (subsidy reform), the G-77/CHINA
emphasized impacts on market access for developing country
products. NORWAY recommended “phasing out” subsidies. The
US proposed reforming “or removing” subsidies. JAPAN deleted
reduction of “trade-distorting” subsidies.

In 51 (innovative financial mechanisms), the G-77/CHINA said
such mechanisms should only supplement ODA. The US noted that
they are not fully evolved conceptually. NORWAY said it is
crucial to follow-up on the intersessional working group on
finance’s proposals. The US called on ODA donors and MDBs to
support projects consistent with local and national Agenda 21s. The
NGO FINANCE CAUCUS called for: an interim target of 0.1%
GNP in ODA for the environment by 2002; targeted aid for the
poorest and projects that have no commercial attraction; common
corporate operating practices for FDI; and an Intergovernmental
Panel on Finance.

On 52 (EST transfer), the G-77/CHINA called for: fulfillment
and review of Agenda 21 commitments and implementation;
reduced constraints on transfers; and cooperation on building
capacity. The EU and US deleted a reference specifying renewed
developed country commitment. CANADA added references to
improving the flow of ESTs and building on current models of
cooperation between the public and private sectors of developed
and developing countries. In53 (human and institutional capacity),
NORWAY called for statistical data to reflect technology transfers
within ODA. In 54 (the private sector’s role), the G-77/CHINA
deleted the linkage between FDI, ODA and technology transfer and
called for consideration of an international commission to fund the
acquisition of patent rights. The US, supported by CANADA,
replaced a reference to further efforts by developed countries to
acquire and transfer privately-owned technology with a reference to
the international community, and added that transfers on
concessional terms should be to the least developed countries.
PERU proposed a clearinghouse mechanism to facilitate
concessional transfers. On56 (public-private partnerships), the
G-77/CHINA added text on centers for technology transfer. The
US included multilateral development banks and international
development institutions alongside governments as actors to play a
key role in establishing partnerships. In57 (government’s role in
business linkages), the EU stressed the importance of developing
national legal and policy frameworks. NORWAY added that
cleaner production programmes should be supported when
stimulating joint ventures.

In 58 (South-South cooperation), the US called for priority
attention to technology needs assessments. The G-77/CHINA
called for developing country assistance through trilateral
arrangements and the UN Voluntary Trust Fund for South-South
Cooperation. On59 (electronic information and
telecommunications networks), JAPAN added a reference to using
new technologies to reduce environmental impacts. CANADA
drew attention to the potential for technology match-making and
brokering.

In 63-65(science,) CANADA called for full and equal
participation of girls and women in education and training. The EU
proposed examination of the connection between the economic,
social and environmental aspects of sustainable development.
JAPAN called for promotion of existing regional and global
networks. Regarding strengthened capacity in developing countries,
the support of funding mechanisms was called for “in accordance
with their mandates” (US), “within existing resources”
(CANADA), and for “recipient” countries (UKRAINE).

DIALOGUE WITH MAJOR GROUPS
INDIGENOUS PEOPLES: Panelists in the dialogue session

on indigenous peoples noted that the Co-Chairs’ text fails to reflect
the lack of progress on critical issues of concern to indigenous
peoples, although consistently presented at international meetings.
They stressed,inter alia: the need for political empowerment,
self-determination, control over natural resources; the problems of
poverty, homelessness and unemployment; recognition of
indigenous political institutions, ancestral lands and intellectual
property rights; and mechanisms for participation in
decision-making beyond “tokenism.” Panelists called for: corporate
responsibility for TNCs; priority for the draft Declaration on the
Rights of Indigenous Peoples; a permanent UN forum for
indigenous peoples; expanding the scope of the indigenous
peoples’ fund for participation; inclusion of indigenous peoples on
a par with industry in the CSD’s work; and a moratorium on
bio-prospecting until IPR are protected. They also called for:
coordination with the CBD and the Center for Human Rights
during review of the TRIPs agreement; establishing a CSD body to
examine mining issues; examining the effect of globalization on
indigenous peoples; and conclusion of a biosafety protocol. An
Inuit representative noted the high level of POPs in the Arctic
region and urged completion of a global agreement on POPs.

NGOs: On Agenda 21 implementation in the South, panelists
noted that governments are often unconcerned with underlying
causes. They stressed: mechanisms for NGO consultation and
collaboration; capacity-building; lack of awareness about
environmental issues; and promotion of community-level
initiatives. Proposals included: developing a green credit system to
assess environment projects; providing documentation on all
initiatives proposed at the CSD; viewing poverty eradication as a
global problem; and prioritizing education. On national and
regional implementation, panelists reported on progress in Europe
and South Africa. A number of States described their methods for
reporting to their constituencies on activities at the CSD.
Presentations on the CSD’s role in the next five years focused on:
trade, environment and sustainable development; a forest
convention versus stronger implementation of the CBD; and TNC
accountability. One panelist noted that the CSD is perhaps the most
appropriate international institution to address globalization.

IN THE CORRIDORS
NGOs are heartened that several delegates from both North and

South and the Co-Chair are encouraging others to consider their
proposal for a CSD intergovernmental panel on finance. NGOs are
concerned with the “sterile” level of debate over finance issues and
believe a panel might be one way to move it forward. Some
privately acknowledge that the panel may be yet another pseudo
response. Among the issues proposed for its agenda are:
appropriate roles of ODA and FDI; ways to ensure that FDI
contributes to sustainable development; means of mobilizing
domestic resources; and international mechanisms to generate
funds.

THINGS TO LOOK FOR TODAY
PLENARY: The Plenary will complete C.3 (means of

implementation) and begin section B (assessment of progress) in
morning, afternoon and possible evening meetings in Conference
Room 2.

INFORMAL CONSULTATIONS: Informal consultations
will be held on the CSD work programme at 10:30 am in
Conference Room A, on forests at 3:30 pm and on institutions at
3:00 pm, in rooms to be announced.

DIALOGUES: Dialogues will take place with local authorities
and farmers in Conference Room 1.

Earth Negotiations Bulletin
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Vol. 5 No. 75 Page 2 Wednesday, 16 April 1997


